Hickory Withe Presbyterian
Church Building 1861 - 1915

The current Hickory Withe Presbyterian Church (HWPCQC) building was constructed under the leadership of
Reverend Marion Zellner and the Memphis Presbytery of the Cumberland Church. In 1861, worship services

for the Hickory Withe Cumberland Presbyterian Church were being held in the newly built sanctuary.

The floor of the sanctuary was built with a slight slope. According to Terry Himebook, HWPC
Director of Music,

“The sanctuary’s sloped floor was constructed to allow sound to carry farther during the
era of no sound systems. This architectural feature was common in Europe, going back to
the Roman Empire. By building the back of the room higher than the front, less sound was
blocked by the congregational members. In the days before sound equipment, this was the
best way to make certain that the preaching was clearly heard by all. For a musician, as well
as a preacher, the acoustics in the sanctuary are ideal. The builders planned well.”

There was a small slave gallery in the back of the church that slaves accessed by stairs on the two sides
of the church foyer. Today, the two small rooms on the right and left of the foyer have openings in their
ceilings where the stairs were located.
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From 1913 through 1915, the former Hickory Withe Cumberland Presbyterian Church, now owned by the
session of Hickory Withe Presbyterian Church, PCUS, was remodeled and the slave gallery was enclosed.
"The original Hickory Withe Presbyterian Church, PCUS, located on the southeast corner of Donelson
Road and Highway 196, was demolished. In 1915, the newly remodeled church was dedicated and
Dr. O. W. Wardlaw installed as pastor of the united congregation.



Prosperity Presbyterian Church Early Pastors
Reverend Peter Randolph Bland

Prosperity Church Organizing Members

Pr osperity Pr €SbYtGI‘ tan Church was founded near Oakland’ Jas. Alexander Colonel Guerrant Elizabeth Tbompson Jacob Young
TN, on December 28, 1834, by Reverend Peter Rand()lph Bland Ozeriab Alexander ~ Elizabeth Guerrant George T/oompson James Young
and twenty-nine (29) believers. Reverend Bland was pastor from Elizabeth Allen Rebecca Hunter Barney lorrence Jane Young

. . John Allen Samuel Hunter Rebecca Torrence Mary Young
December 1834 until August 1835 and again from November 1840 Margaret H.Allen  Esther Karr Jas. H. McWhorter  Sanah Young

until April 1841. Reverend Bland was originally from Nottoway Mary M. Allen William Karr Lina McWhorter
Sam C. Allen Louisa Neals Louise McWhorter

Win. Allen Sam’l]. Neal Win. McWhorter

County, VA, and settled in the Mason area of Fayette County
in 1829. The Bland tamily was a First Family of Virginia and
prominent political family in U.S. history.

Reverend Robert McCoy

Prosperity Presbyterian Church was divided by the Memphis Presbytery in 1850 into two separate congregations,
one going to Hickory Withe and one to Macon. Reverend Robert McCoy was pastor at Hickory Withe from 1850
until January 1854 and from April 1858 until January 1860.

Family records state that his oldest daughter, Mary Martha, often proudly told the story that in the gold rush days,

her father bought a mule, filled his saddle bags with Bibles, and set out for California to show the greedy seekers for

| Reverend Robert McCoy oold that they had better be laying up treasures in Heaven! No one knows how successful he was, but his trip was a

matter of pride to his daughter, and no one in the family seemed to question the venture.

Reverend Sidney Smith (S.S.) Gill

Reverend Sidney Smith Gill was pastor of Hickory Withe Presbyterian Church (HWPC) for 44 faithful years
from January 1861 — April 1905.

In addition to his long-standing service at HWPC, Reverend Gill was authorized by the Presbytery of Memphis
to organize Oakland Presbyterian Church and played a vital role in the church’s early years.

Reverend Sidney Smith
(S.S.) Gill

Mount Pleasant Cumberland Presbyterian
Church Early Pastors

Reverend Rueben Burrow, Jr.

Reverend Marion Zellner

Reverend Reuben Burrow, Jr. was installed as the first pastor ot Reverend Marion Zellner was pastor ot
Mount Pleasant Cumberland Presbyterian Church in Hickory the Cumberland Presbyterian church in
Withe on October 4, 1841. Hickory Withe trom March 6, 1859, until

he resigned on May 6, 1865. Under his

Reverend Burrow was a circuit rider leadership, the congregation relocated

for the Somerville area. Circuit riders from Mount Pleasant Cemetery to a

were essentially missionaries for the new building on Donelson Road which
was completed in 1861 and 1s the current

Hickory Withe Presbyterian Church.

gospel until churches were organized | Sketch ofa 19¢h century | Reverend Marion Zellner
circuit rider

Cumberland church in newly settled

areas. 1'he circuit riders preached the

and assigned a preacher. The
Somerville Circuit included several counties and often required
preaching three to four times in one day with hours of horseback
riding between locations.



The Civil War and the Presbyterian Church
1861 - 1865

The Civil War was America’s bloodiest conflict with an estimated 620,000 military casualties or approximately 2.0% of the U.S.
population in 1861. "To put the numbers in perspective, 2.0% of the 2023 U.S. Population would yield approximately 6.8 million casualties.

"The South had a significantly lower population than the North which heightened the impact of its approximate 260,000 casualties. The
southern casualties combined with the physical destruction of the war propelled a decades-long period that challenged every aspect of life

including religious institutions.

The War’s Impact on Ministry

The minutes of the Presbytery of Memphis note the difficulties of holding Presbytery meetings and sustaining ministry candidates during the

war as all of the young men under the presbytery's care had joined the Confederate Army. Also, since pastors served as chaplains during the

war, many churches did not have a pastor or had their pastor’s time reduced. Reverend Marion Zellner was Chaplain of the 12th Regiment

of the Tennessee Calvary, and Reverend Robert McCoy served as Chaplain of the 6th "Tennessee Regiment. Chaplains were needed on the

battlefield, but they were greatly missed at home as their congregations suftered mightily during the war.

The Presbytery of Memphis Exits PCUSA

On June 13, 1861, the Presbytery of Memphis dissolved its relationship with the Presbyterian Church in the United States of America due to
the PCUSA's adoption of the Gardiner Spring Resolutions at its May 1861 General Assembly in Philadelphia. The resolutions pledged the
denomination's allegiance to the Union.

In detense of its exit from the PCUSA, the Presbytery of Memphis wrote the following letter to President Abraham Lincoln.
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Organization of the Presbyterian Church  Organization of the Presbyterian Church
in the Confederate States of America in the United States

The Presbyterian Church in the Confederate States of America Following the South’s surrender, the PCCSA held its General
(PCCSA) was organized on December 4, 1861, in Augusta, GA. Assembly in Macon, GA, on December 14, 1865, and changed its
As a member of the Presbytery of Memphis, HWPC is now name to the Presbyterian Church in the United States (PCUS).
aligned with the PCCSA. HWPC was under the Presbytery ot Memphis, PCUS until

November 11, 1980.

The War’s Aftermath

"T'he Presbyterian church in the South struggled after the war. Churches were financially devasted and often unable to pay a pastor. There

was also a shortage of pastors due to young men postponing their education to enlist in the army as well as the vast casualties of the war.

"These struggles and common suffering during and in the aftermath ot the Civil War likely contributed to the 1907 merger of the
Cumberland and PCUS congregations in Hickory Withe.



